
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
December 3, 2012 

Executive Session - 6:00 P.M. 
7:00 P.M. 

Municipal Meeting Room 
Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) 
 
Roll Call  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
(b) People Plus Update 
 
(c) Permission to accept and expend the State Department of Conservation shoreline and 

harbor management planning grant (Action required)   
 
(d) Acceptance of Forfeited Asset (Action Required)  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
123. The Town Council will hear public comments on an ordinance to exempt active duty 

military from paying excise tax on vehicles, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Chair King and Councilor Watson) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 

124. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to the General 
Assistance Ordinance Maximums, to be enacted on an emergency and regular basis, 
and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

HEARING/ACTION 
 

125. The Town Council will hear public comments on the Molnlycke TIF, and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Manager) 



2 
 

HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
126. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for December 17, 2012, to 

consider an amendment to the Town Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2, Section 216, 
relating to the review of demolitions in the Village Review Overlay Zone, and will 
take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
127.  The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution Pertaining to Use Of The 

Special Revenue Fund for Recreation Programs To Fund A Feasibility Study For An 
Outdoor Aquatic Facility,” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
128. The Town Council will consider reappointing Larissa Darcy to the Brunswick 

Development Corporation for a three year term to expire on September 7, 2015, and 
will take any appropriate action.  (Chair King) 

ACTION 
 
129. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, 

and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 
ACTION 

 
130. The Town Council will discuss the Town Manager’s performance review, and 

determine if any action is needed. 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the minutes of November 19, 2012 
(b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Registrar of Voters 
(c) Approval of tax abatement for James Miller D/B/A Cosmic Bodyworks 

 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 
(TDD 725-5521) 

 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

December 3, 2012 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to go into executive session for a Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s 
evaluation per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A). 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they 

are involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(b) People Plus Update:  Stacy Frizzle, Executive Director, will provide a report on the 

activities of this group. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(c) Permission to accept and expend the State Department of Conservation shoreline and 

harbor management planning grant (Action required):  This item allows the Town to 
accept and expend funds from a shoreline and harbor planning grant through the 
Maine Department of Conservation.  The grant gives the Town the opportunity to 
utilize the expertise of consultants to help develop a sound harbor management plan.  
The Town was awarded $20,000, with the Town’s responsibility to provide 60 man 
hours as our match. Copies of a memo from Dan Devereau and the grant application 
are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to accept and expend the State Department of Conservation shoreline and 
harbor management planning grant in an amount of $20,000. 

 
(d) Acceptance of Forfeited Asset (Action Required):  The Court has awarded the Police 

Department forfeiture funds resulting from drug arrests.  The Police are requesting the 
Council accept these assets.  The first one is $2,210 in cash and a variety of guns.  The 
other one is for cash totaling $1,080.  Copies of an email from Chief Rizzo and court 
documents are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to accept and expend Forfeited Assets related to Criminal Action Docket No. 
CR-12-3997, with a total value of $2,210.00 and Criminal Action Docket No. CR-12-
3215, with a total value of $1,080.00.  

 



4 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
123. This item, sponsored by Chair King and Councilor Watson, is the required public 

hearing on an ordinance that would exempt active duty military from paying excise tax 
on vehicles while on active duty.  In 2011 the Legislature passed a law that authorizes 
local municipalities to adopt an ordinance that exempts active duty military personnel 
from paying excise tax on motor vehicles.  The possible impact on the Town based on 
current numbers would be less than $5,000.  Copies of a memo from Manager Brown, 
the draft ordinance, and the state law reference are included in your packet.  

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt an ordinance to exempt active duty military from paying excise tax on 
vehicles. 

 
124. This item is the required public hearing to change the current General Assistance 

maximums and staff is requesting that the Council adopt the amendments on an 
emergency and regular basis in order to be enacted immediately after the public 
hearing.  This is the annual adoption of the limits, with changes only in the Housing 
amounts.  Copies of a memo and supporting materials are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to the General Assistance Ordinance Maximums, to be 
enacted on an emergency and regular basis. 

 
125. This item is the required public hearing for this TIF.  Town staff has been working 

with representatives from Molnlycke Health Care to develop a proposed Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) program to assist Molnlycke establish and expand their 
business at Brunswick Landing. Copies of the draft Development program and draft 
credit enhancement agreement (CEA) are included in the Council packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Town Council Resolution Designating the Mölnlycke 
Manufacturing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District.” 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
126. This item is to consider setting a public hearing on Zoning Ordinance amendments 

regarding the Village Review Board and demolition of buildings.  At the request of the 
Council, the Planning Board drafted and reviewed the proposed amendment to the 
Zoning Ordinance relating to the review of demolitions in the Village Review Overlay 
District. After holding a joint workshop with the Village Review Board and a public 
hearing, the Planning Board proposed an “interim” amendment, which advocates 
Certificates of Appropriateness for demolition or relocation be approved by the 
Planning Board, with recommendation provided by the Village Review Board.  Copies 
of a memo from the Planning Department and draft amendments are included in your 
packet. 

 



5 
 

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for December 17, 2012, to consider an amendment to 
the Town Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2, Section 216, relating to the review of 
demolitions in the Village Review Overlay Zone. 

 
127. This item is to authorize the Recreation Commission to have a feasibility study done 

for an outdoor aquatic facility.  The authorization will not exceed $25,000 and will be 
funded from the Recreation Special Revenue fund.  This study will look at the 
feasibility of developing a new facility to replace the Coffin Pond swimming area.  A 
copy of the draft resolution is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Resolution Pertaining to Use Of The Special Revenue Fund for 
Recreation Programs To Fund A Feasibility Study For An Outdoor Aquatic Facility.” 

 
128. This item, sponsored by Chair King, is to reappoint Larissa Darcy to the Brunswick 

Development Corporation for a three year term to expire on September 7, 2015. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to reappoint Larissa Darcy to the Brunswick Development Corporation for a 
three year term to expire on September 7, 2015. 

 
129. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on 

Town Boards and Committees.  Copies of the applications are included in your packet. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote 
on the nominations. 

 
130. This item is for the Town Council to discuss the Town Manager’s performance review 

and make any recommendations. 
 

Suggested motion: 
 No suggested motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Approval of the Minutes of November 19, 2012:  A copy of the minutes is included in 

your packet. 
 
(b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Registrar of Voters:  This is a biannual appointment of the 

registrar of voters for a term to expire December 31, 2014. 
 
(c)  Approval of tax abatement for James Miller D/B/A Cosmic Bodyworks: This item is to 

abate taxes that were assessed in error.  A memo from the Assessor is included in your 
packet. 

  



6 
 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



















 
 

 
Manager Report D 
Materials available in Town 
Manager’s office 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 123 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 29, 2012    
 
RE: Excise Tax Exemption Ordinance      
 
In 2011 the Legislature passed a law that authorizes local municipalities to adopt an 
ordinance that exempts active duty military personnel from paying excise tax on motor 
vehicles. A copy of that statue is attached to this memo. 
 
Council Chair King and Councilor Watson have sponsored the agenda item to set a 
public hearing to adopt this ordinance in Brunswick. A DRAFT of the ordinance is also 
attached. 
 
I have discussed the possible impact of this with the Finance Department. We do not 
have the ability to identify the individuals that may qualify for this benefit, but an 
educated estimate is that the impact will be less than $5,000. 
 
 

 .  
 
 



 

 
 

Municipality of Brunswick, Maine 
 

ORDINANCE 
EXEMPTING ELIGIBLE ACTIVE DUTY MILITARY PERSONNEL FROM 

VEHICLE EXCISE TAX 
 
Section 1. Authority. 
 
This ordinance is enacted pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 1483-A, which expressly authorizes such 
ordinances. 
 
Section 2.  Excise tax exemption; qualifications. 
 
Vehicles owned by a resident of this municipality who is on active duty serving in the United 
States Armed Forces and who is either permanently stationed at a military or naval post, 
station or base outside this State or deployed for military service for a period of more than 180 
days and who desires to register that resident’s vehicle(s) in this State are hereby exempted 
from the annual excise tax imposed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 1482. 
 
To apply for this exemption, the resident must present to the municipal excise tax collector 
certification from the commander of the resident’s post, station or base, or from the 
commander’s designated agent, that the resident is permanently stationed at that post, station 
or base or is deployed for military service for a period of more than 180 days. 
 
For purposes of this section, “United States Armed Forces” includes the National Guard and 
the Reserves of the United States Armed Forces. 
 
For purposes of this section, “deployed for military service” has the same meaning as in 26 
M.R.S.A. § 814(1)(A). 
 
For purposes of this section, “vehicle” has the same meaning as in 36 M.R.S.A. § 1481(5) and 
does not include any snowmobiles as defined in 12 M.R.S.A. § 13001. 
 
Section 3.  Effective date; duration. 
 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty days after its adoption by the Town Council and shall 
remain in effect unless and until it or 36 M.R.S.A. § 1483-A is repealed.  



  |  1

36 §1483-A. LOCAL OPTION EXEMPTION FOR
RESIDENTS PERMANENTLY STATIONED OR DEPLOYED

FOR MILITARY SERVICE OUTSIDE OF THE STATE

36 §1483-A. LOCAL OPTION EXEMPTION FOR RESIDENTS PERMANENTLY
STATIONED OR DEPLOYED FOR MILITARY SERVICE OUTSIDE OF THE
STATE

A municipality may by ordinance exempt from the annual excise tax imposed pursuant to section 1482
vehicles owned by a resident who is on active duty serving in the United States Armed Forces and who is
either permanently stationed at a military or naval post, station or base outside this State or deployed for
military service for a period of more than 180 days who desires to register that resident's vehicle in this State.
To apply for the exemption, the resident must present to a designated municipal official certification from
the commander of the resident's post, station or base, or from the commander's designated agent, that the
resident is permanently stationed at that post, station or base or is deployed for military service for a period of
more than 180 days. For purposes of this section, "United States Armed Forces" includes the National Guard
and the Reserves of the United States Armed Forces. For purposes of this section, "deployed for military
service" has the same meaning as in Title 26, section 814, subsection 1, paragraph A. [2011, c. 313,
§1 (NEW);  2011, c. 313, §2 (AFF).]

SECTION HISTORY
2011, c. 313, §1 (NEW).  2011, c. 313, §2 (AFF).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish
this material, we require that you include the following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this
publication reflects changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 125th Maine Legislature, is current

through September 1, 2012, and is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially
certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory
publication you may produce. Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who
is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or
interpretation of Maine law to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



 
 

 
ITEM 124 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 29, 2012 
 
RE: Changes to General Assistance Ordinance         
 
Council is being asked to set a public hearing on proposed changes to the General 
Assistance Ordinance. This is the typical annual exercise that all Towns go through as 
some of the allowable levels of assistance are modified. This is different than the 
changes that Council acted on last spring. Those were changes that were the result of 
structural changes in the law. 
 
The proposed change pertains to the level of assistance for housing.  
 
  
 

 .  
 
 






	Agenda - December 3 2012.pdf
	part 1 of dec 3
	mr a no
	mr b no
	mr c yes
	mr c grant_20121128114932
	mr d yes
	mr d email
	mr d FICKETT-McKENNY FORFEITURES
	123 yes
	123 dec 3 116 October 29 memo regarding Excise Tax ordinance
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	123 Dec 3 116 Excise Tax Ordinance _2_
	123 dec 3 116 title36sec1483-A
	124 yes
	124 dec 3 117 October 30 memo regarding GA increases
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	124 dec 3 117 ga max_20121029123302

	125 yes COMPLETE
	125 a COmplete  Development Program (Molnlycke Brunswick) (11-26-12).pdf
	A. Mölnlycke Health Care and Mölnlycke Manufacturing
	II.      Development Program Narrative
	A. Costs and Sources of Revenues
	B. Public Indebtedness


	125 B Complete CEA with Molnlycke (clean 11-21-12).pdf
	ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS
	Section 1.1.  Definitions.
	Section 1.2.  Interpretation and Construction.

	ARTICLE II DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS
	Section 2.1.  Creation of Development Program Fund.
	Section 2.2.  Liens.
	Section 2.3.  Captured Assessed Value; Deposits into Development Program Fund.
	Section 2.4.  Use of Monies in Development Program Fund.
	Section 2.5.  Monies Held in Segregated Account.

	ARTICLE III PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
	Section 3.1.  Company Payments.
	Section 3.2.  Failure to Make Payment.
	Section 3.3.  Manner of Payments.
	Section 3.4.  Obligations Unconditional.
	Section 3.5.  Limited Obligation.

	ARTICLE IV PLEDGE AND SECURITY INTEREST
	Section 4.1.  Pledge of and Grant of Security Interest in Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount.
	Section 4.2.  Perfection of Interest.
	Section 4.3.  Further Instruments.
	Section 4.4.  No Disposition of Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount.
	Section 4.5.  Access to Books and Records.

	(b)   All non-confidential books, records and documents in the possession of Mölnlycke relating to the number and length of service of Mölnlycke’s FTE employees shall upon reasonable notice be open to inspection by the Town, its agents and employees. ...
	ARTICLE V DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
	Section 5.1.  Events of Default.
	Section 5.2.  Remedies on Default.
	Section 5.3.  Remedies Cumulative.

	ARTICLE VI EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION
	Section 6.1.  Effective Date and Term.
	Section 6.2.  Cancellation and Expiration of Term.

	ARTICLE VII ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF MÖLNLYCKE'S INTEREST
	Section 7.1.  Consent to Pledge and/or Assignment.
	Section 7.2.  Pledge, Assignment or Security Interest.

	ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 8.1.  Successors.
	Section 8.2.  Parties-in-Interest.
	Section 8.3.  Severability.
	Section 8.4.  No Personal Liability of Officials of the Town.
	Section 8.5.  Counterparts.
	Section 8.6.  Governing Law.
	Section 8.7.  Notices.
	Section 8.8.  Amendments.
	Section 8.10.  Benefit of Assignees or Pledgees.
	Section 8.11.  Integration.
	Section 8.12.  Reserved.
	Section 8.13.  Dispute Resolution.
	Section 8.14.  Tax Laws and Valuation Agreement.



	part 3 of dec 3
	126 yes
	126 VRZ amendment TC memo 112812
	126 Section 216 Village Review Zone - PJS rev - 11 27 12 _2_
	127 yes
	127 Aquatic Feasibility Study Town Council Resolution 120312
	128 no
	129 yes
	129 board applications
	17-ThoseInterestCertainDateRange.pdf
	20121127144808

	130 no
	ca a yes
	ca a nov 19 2012 min
	ca b no
	ca c yes
	ca c abatemnt_20121128103234




